
          

 

DELTA FARMS 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
APRIL 18, 2023 

8:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.deltafarmswcd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

DELTA FARMS 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

1708 21st Street 
Vero Beach, Florida 32960 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
April 18, 2023 

8:00 A.M. 
 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. February 21, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………………...............Page 4 

G. Reports 

1. Treasurer’s Report……………………………………………………………………………...Page 7 

 Adjustment to Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget…………………………………..Page 13 

2. Engineer 

 Status Report 

3. Attorney 

4. Chairman 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget……Page 15 

2. Consider Approval of Bluebird North-Construction Permit Application 2023-01……………..Page 21 

3. Update on the Status of the Loan from DFWCD to POA 

4. Update on the SJRWMD Permit 

J. Administrative Matters 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



DELTA FARMS WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 21, 2023 
 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Clayton Amestoy called the February 21, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Delta Farms 
Water Control District (the “District”) to order at 8:06 a.m. at the Offices of Carter Associates located 
at 1708 21st Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960.   
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 

 
Mr. Sakuma presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting was published 
in the Indian River Press Journal on December 9, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
Meeting Schedule, as required by law. 

 
C. ESTABLISH QUORUM 
 
Mr. Sakuma stated that the attendance of Supervisors Tim Dooley and Clayton Amestoy constituted 
a quorum and it was in order for the meeting to proceed.  
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
Ms. Cynthia Colella asked for the Board to delete New Business #3 “Discussion Regarding 
Resolutions Recently Passed.” 
 
Mr. Dooley asked for an addition under New Business: “Loan to the Property Owners’ Association.”  
 
The agenda, as amended, was approved on a motion made by Mr. Dooley, seconded by Mr. Amestoy.  
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
None. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
1. December 20, 2022, Regular Board Meeting  

The December 20, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes were approved, as presented, on a motion 
made by Mr. Dooley, seconded by Mr. Amestoy.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
G. REPORTS  
 

1. Treasurer 

Mr. Sakuma presented the financials provided in the Board package and discussed briefly with the 
Board his thoughts on the maintenance line item. District Engineer, Tyler Spencer, noted several 
engineering invoices may need to be reviewed and changed to “administrative” line items.   

Page 4



 
2. Engineer 

Mr. Spencer provided an update on the aquatic treatments by Future Horizons and asked for guidance 
on continued use of a slightly more expensive chemical. After discussion, the consensus was to 
continue with the Diquat herbicide.  
 
Mr. Spencer advised of further action related to the pending CUP renewal and changes to the potential 
allocations to the District. The Board directed the Engineer to advocate for a minimal reduction to the 
allocation, which will result in a 1.3 billion gallon allocation. After Board discussion, it was 
determined that the District should more information and analysis was necessary in order for the 
Board to make an informed decision about the renewal.  Mr. Spencer requested that the Chairman be 
authorized to assist in the renewal, as well as allowing Carter Associates to act as Agent for the 
District. The Chairman was authorized to execute all necessary documents for the CUP renewal, and 
Carter Associates was authorized to act as the District Agent during the renewal process on a motion 
made by Mr. Dooley, seconded by Mr. Banack. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

3. Attorney 

There was no Attorney Report at this time.  
 

4. Secretary 

There was no Secretary Report at this time. 
 

5. Chairman 

There was no Chairman Report at this time. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board.  
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider approval of Pump Station C – East Pump Repair Quote  

The proposal from R&S Metalworks was approved on a motion made by Mr. Dooley, seconded by 
Mr. Amestoy.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

2. Discussion Regarding FPL & Well Permit Application  

Ms. Cynthia Colella, a pending permit applicant, advised the Board that FPL informed her the District 
Engineer had denied her permit request to utilize District right-of-way for FPL pole placement. Mr. 
Spencer noted that was not the case, and any use of District right-of-way was at the discretion of the 
Board, not the Engineer. After discussion, it was determined the application should submit sufficient 
details with the permit request to allow the Board to make an informed decision. Reference was made 
to a prior J&J permit application. Mr. Spencer will continue to work with the applicant.  
 

3. Loan to the Property Owners’ Association  

Mr. Dooley advised the Board of several outstanding invoices related to reestablishing the Delta 
Farms Property Owners Association and recommended the Board authorize a loan to the POA. After 

Page 5



further discussion, Mr. Sakuma was directed to work with District Counsel in processing a loan of 
$10,000 to the POA on a motion made by Mr. Dooley, seconded by Mr. Amestoy. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
J. AUDITOR SELECTION COMMITTEE 
 
No action was required on this item, as the Board had retained a financial audit firm during the 
December 20, 2022, public meeting.  
 
K. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
There were no Administrative Matters to come before the Board. 
 
L. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board.  
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Sakuma advised that April 18, 2023, 
was the next scheduled meeting. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:23 a.m. by Chairman Amestoy.  There were no objections. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Secretary       Chairman 

Page 6



Delta Farms
Water Control District

 Financial Report For
March 2023

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Delta Farms
Water Control District

   Amended Final Budget For
    Fiscal Year 2021/2022

  October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2022

Page 13



Page 14



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE DELTA 
FARMS WATER CONTROL DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED 
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Delta Farms Water Control 
District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a Proposed 
Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE DELTA FARMS WATER CONTROL DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for June 1, 2023, at 8:00 a.m. in the 
Offices of Carter Associates, Inc., 1708 21st Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960, for the purpose 
of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 18th day of April, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: DELTA FARMS 
 WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 15



   Delta Farms
  Water Control District

      Proposed Budget For
      Fiscal Year 2023/2024

     October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



02/23/2023 2023-01

USDA/NRCS Dino Ricciardi, Engineer

324 8th Ave. West, Suite 104; 34221 941.981.4460

 2218/2219 2  32S  37E

Install 3-18" Dia. HDPE culverts into the District's Canal

April 1, 2023

July 1, 2023

✔

N/A

Agricultural Engineer 3-1-2023DINO RICCIARDI (Affiliate) Digitally signed by DINO RICCIARDI (Affiliate) 
Date: 2023.03.01 14:58:09 -05'00'

Page 21



Page 22


	Delta Farms Water Control District - April 18, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	February 21, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Treasurer’s Report
	Adjustment to Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget
	Consider Approval of Bluebird North-Construction Permit Application 2023-01




